Draft Meeting Notes 8-29-2024
Participants: Beth Hall, Ginger Davis, Ben Esterline, Garth Lindner, Connor McCarty, Tony Bailey

General IMAB Communications:
Meeting started with Some conversations about file access for the IMAB: Teams is tough due to the Purdue security and state/fed logging in and out, Box won’t work for most, Google won’t work for some.  It was suggested that password protected access to the website might be the best path forward.  This would also allow for more viewability. ACTION (Austin): Explore creating a restricted area of the INMeso website for stuff like this.  Additionally, can an email interface also be set up in this restricted area?
On the Advisory board page- password protected “Board Member access” - place for files, calendar for meetings, promotional materials, etc.

Synoptic’s Data Viewer
Synoptic viewer on the webpage - Questions about dashboard access.  Purdue is currently doing a 90-day free trial (started early September-ish).   The dashboard provides a bunch of backend manager tools such as QC screening, threshold alerts, etc.  ACTION (Austin): Is there a way to remove the link to the dashboard from the public viewer, since it asks for a login nor is it relevant for public users?  This part is a charge service.  They are allowing a 90-day free trial access.
QUESTION (Beth and Austin will explore further): If we paid for it would all the viewers have access? Who should have access to the dashboard?  That is, what is the audience for this dashboard? - question for Elizabeth with synoptic
Synoptic has QAQC process and have some spatial statistics to compare to surrounding sites, record checks, etc.

Website Feedback (ACTION Items for Austin)
· Link the logo in the bottom right to the home page
· Put the marketing materials of the one pager in the “overview” also put in the slide deck, etc.
· Link to industry specific in the “benefit” tab add slide deck there too.
· Move “Advisory board” to bottom of the About options
· Advisory board – make it more obvious that its a hyper link
· Remove “on the Board” from the Advisory board. Until an official board is approved
· Looked at other sites (KY, OK, etc. ) for what is on their websites
· Steering Committee, Consortium, how the universities are connected.
· Possible suggested pages
· Staff of the mesonets?
· Stakeholders group? and how to be involved


Collaboration discussions - there is some discussion about how IU and Purdue view the mesonet and the partnership.  
Discussion of the proposal
Ginger presented an overview of a proposed budget that considers the weather stations (mesonet stations) as well as hydro monitoring (e.g., groundwater, deep soil, runoff).  Idea is to split the hardware and maintenance of this monitoring 50-50 between IN-SCO and IGWS and IN-SCO would take the lead on the IT side (e.g., database management, website, etc).  The proposal was for 5-years and not targeted Request For Proposals (RFP) had been identified.  
· Question about lifecycle buildout as a part of the proposal- future proof of modularity
· Highly dependent upon individual sensors and overall stations are very modularized to adapt to both short and long equipment lifecycles
· General assumption is 10 years, but incorrect to assume entire network materials would need to be replaced within that time. 
· Assume a 10% inventory for immediate sensor replacements (e.g., faulty sensor or needing calibration)
· Regular communication with other state mesonet programs (Midwest = monthly conversations; national = binational conferences) that explore these topics, sensor reliabilities, lifecycles, etc.
· Related to lifecycle, what happens if 5-year proposal is funded and ends.  Will network fail?  What do other mesonets do?
· The strongest mesonets have line-item funding within the state budget
· Technicians' workforce- there is a concern for the pool of applicants.  If network expands to 92+ stations, will it be a challenge hiring enough technicians in a short amount of time to adequately support the network?
· Among all state mesonets, serious concern about the limited pool of applicants
· Technicians typically don’t make high salaries, may have to work in poor environmental conditions, need skillset/training for unique sensors
· Some mesonets use student interns, but turnover and training time commitment often makes this inefficient
· IU offers and instrumentation course that could provide decent pool of applicants
· No advanced degree is required.  However, it is advised to have a tiered system where perhaps lead technicians have more formal training.  Junior technicians could probably have just a high school degree.
· Question about carrying liability insurance for technicians.
· Universities usually cover that liability for employees
· Insurance on equipment?
· Not sure what university covers for this.  
· This could be considered part of the replacement costs already considered within budgets
· What if land hosting station no longer can host station?
· Written within site agreement contracts that adequate notification is required.
· Regarding 50-50 split of hardware/materials/equipment within budget proposal:
· Is this helpful in codifying partnership between IN-SCO and IGWS?
· IN-SCO not in the business of hydro monitoring, so could not have 50% of that
· How would the 50-50 split be determined and articulated?
· North-South? No
· Agricultural vs non-agricultural land? No
· IGWS is doing a spatial gap analysis that considered lidar data and distance from nearby obstructions.  Once this analysis is done, could counties/areas be pre-selected between the 2 networks?  Possibly.
· Consider ease of access to station
· Soil series – better is land has been undisturbed
· USACE Proposal is showing promise for getting funded that were further explore monitoring spatial gap analyses
· Prioritize west side of state (incoming weather)
· Homeland security districts
· Budget is still not addressing how the IN-SCO and IGWS will work together, have the partnership defined, risks and advantages, etc.  Essentially, need a document that serves as a sort of pre-nup so there are no surprises and everyone knows each other’s obligations and expectations.

Shift in overall Indiana Mesonet concept
· More general question that needs to be answered: “How is having 2 separate mesonets in the state more efficient that one?”
· Beth noted there may have been a misunderstanding that came out of the IN Farm Bureau meeting over the summer.  While they were very supportive of the mesonet concept, they cautioned that the State is more focused on water supply.  Therefore, the State is thinking more about water supply and monitoring than mesonets so we should frame our pitch of the mesonets to be critical and complementary to their goal of monitoring water supply.  
· Mesonets should be networks focused on atmospheric and shallow soils monitoring
· All other monitoring (e.g., groundwater, runoff, deep soils) should be a separate effort that have strong partnership with mesonet efforts, yet not be a part of a mesonet
· Ginger suggested the IGWS would be fine having the IN-SCO take over the statewide mesonet program as long as some critical things were in place.  Examples of these might include:
· Coordination of data QA/QC, access, datalogger modification if additional sensors are added to mesonet infrastructure
· Coordination when new sites are explored to entertain co-location of non-mesonet monitoring with the mesonet infrastructure
· Protection if changes in leadership and/or administration pose a threat to the operational nature of all monitoring linked to the mesonet
· Leverage cross-organization sensor/station maintenance
· ACTION (Beth): Draft agreement that would outline many of these issues to start discussion among administration at both institutions
· Benefits of new division
· Easier to promote across state who (IN-SCO or IGWS) is doing what
· Sharing of infrastructure and technician support is more efficient
· Opportunities for co-location of monitoring


Discussion pursued the aggregation of the networks
· Discussion of how IGWS has asked previously about the turnover of the weather components to the IN-SCO.  IN-SCO initially approached Todd Thompson about doing this (when Shawn Naylor was leaving) and was rejected.  At a later meeting, the IN-SCO admitted that personnel resources are currently strained regarding technician support for maintaining current network and will be hesitant to expand beyond 15 stations until additional funding or technician sharing can occur.  During this meeting (8/29/2024), miscommunication was cleared, and it was agreed that IN-SCO leading the Indiana Mesonet effort would be the easiest to move forward.  The board asked if they should discuss the equitable divorce of the partnership, and everyone agreed that Ginger and Beth should first discuss with each other and their administrations and then provide an update at the September IMAB meeting.
· “Buy out” idea
· Discuss what this looks like- the existing stations, the cooperation between networks for communications, data access and pairing of stations for multiple benefits were the main motivation of the IWBN to monitor can continue.
· Ginger will be talking with the director of IWBN to discuss the path forward and if this intent is approved by the IGWS and IU administration.
· Beth needs to consider the funding currently available and how moving this forward would cause an additional burden on their resources.
· Partnership moving forward needs to continue
· The possibility of an Environmental Monitoring group to discuss the path forward for a cooperative group for monitoring and cooperation at each site.  Network optimization.





